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SWARNA PRAGATI HOUSING

BOARDS’ REPORT

YourDirectorsarepleasedtopresent  the eleventhAnnualReportofyourCompanytogetherwiththe  audited
StatementofAccountsandtheAudltors’ReportofyourCompanyfortheﬁnancialyearended, 3istMarch, 2019,

1. Financial Results

The summarized financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2019 are as under:

Amountin Rs.

Particular For the fit’\‘ancial year For the ﬂr:‘ancial year
ended 31" March, 2019 ended 31"March, 2018

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (15,13,82,901) (29,81,020)
Net Current Tax Expense (19,227) 51,48,000
DeferredTax 1,00,37,664 (67,55,860)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - s
Profit/(Loss)after Tax 16,14,01,338) 13,73,160)

2. State of Affairs

The business continues to serve an underserved markes for mﬁng credit in rural and semi-urban markets.
The head start that the Company has had in this segrﬁefﬁf has led to a strong learning curve, which is now
yielding positive results and showing in the quality of book. However, the liquidity situation in the economy
will impact growth in the coming quarters. Portfolio quality is expected to deteriorate as the early vintage
portfolio washes out. The Company is taking proactive measures to anticipate both the liquidity issues and
the portfolio quality and is confident of emerging stronger through appropriate management interventions.

3. Material Changes and Commitments

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
ends of the financial year to which this financial statements relate on the date of this report.

4. Review of Business Operations

During the year under review, the Company has earned Rs. 3016.09 lakhs as revenue from operations and
Rs. 178.81 lakhs from other income. The Profit/loss before tax for the year has been Rs. (1513.83) lakhs as
against Rs. (29.81) lakhs during the previous financial year.

The total indebtedness of the Company as on 31% March 2019 is of Rs.5975.63 lakhs {Long Term
Borrowing) and Rs.4003.61 lakhs (Current Liabilities) as against Rs.8252.98 lakhs and Rs.4121.31 lakhs

during the previous financial year.
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5. Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company has reclassified its Authorised Share Capital of the Company
from existing Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores only) divided into 4,00,00,000 (Four Crores) Equity
Shares Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) reclassified to 3,90,00,000 (Three Crores Ninety Lacs ) Equity Shares and 1,10,00,000 (One Crore
Ten Lacs) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each by Special Resolution passed at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on March 18, 2019.

6. Dividend

YourDirectorsdonot recommend for any dividendfor the year ended 315'March, 2019.

7. Transfer of gmggnggl to Reserve (s}

As per Section 29C (1) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of
its net profit every year to a reserve before a dividend is declared. As Company has incurred loss no transfer
has been made to the reserves.

For transfer to reserves in terms of section 134(3)(J) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2019 your Directors propose to transfer @ NIL amount to General Reserve of the company
and the amount Rs. (16,14,01,338) of will be transferred to Profit & Loss account.

8. Deposit

Your Company is registered as a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company with National Housing Bank
and hence does not accept any deposits. No deposits were accepted from the public in the financial year
ended March 31, 2019.

9, Particula ra rl n Com

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees attracting the provisions of Section 186
of Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Investment made by the Company are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements forming part
of this report.

10. Credit Rating

CARE has given grading of your Company on March 5, 2019 which is CARE BBB- (Triple B Minus; Outlook:
Negative)

11. Board of Dir rs

During the year under review, Mr. Rajkumar Singh resigned from directorship w.e.f. 28.04.2018. The
Present Composition of the Board as on 3isMarch, 2019,




SI.No | Name Address Designation 2:::““ nt
Plot No. 20, Bhaskar Street,
VGN Mahalakshmi  Nagar, .

1. :;Jmar Ramesh | ¢ tension vill, g:‘:;t":" & 1 05/01/2009
Ayanambakkam, Thiruverkadu
- 600077

Anuradha A 804, Oberoi Splendor, JVLR, | Nominee

2 Ramachandran Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400060 | Director 10/12/2015
B82 Brookhaven Apt, JVLR, Nominee

3. Sushma Kaushik | Jogeshwari East Mumbai — Director 19/09/2016
400060, Maharashtra
C 203, Transresidency 1,

o Subhash Nagar, SEEPZ, Near | _.

4, Abhijeet Kudva Floral Deck Plaza, Andheri Director 19/12/2018

East, Mumbai - 400093

* Ms. Sushma Kaushik has stepped down from directorship w.e.f. May 13, 2019.

12. Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, the
following employees are the whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company:

1. Amit Ranjan Biswal, Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
2. Mohammad Sameer Siddiqui, Chief Financial Officer of the Company

During the year under review Ms. Lakshmi Raghupathy resigned as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.
22.11.2018.

Mr. Amit Biswal has resigned from the office of Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Board of Directors
relieved him from services w.e.f. May 31, 2019.

13. Details of Board meetings

During the year, 4 (four) number of Board meetings were held, details of which are given below-

Sr. Dates of the
No. meeting

1 26.06.2018
2 29,09.2018
3 06.12.2018
4 12.03.2019




14. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted various Committees to support the Board in discharging its responsibilities. The
Company has constituted the following committee in accordance with the provisions of the Act viz.

a. Audit Committee

b. Risk Management Committee

c. Asset Liability Committee

d. Debt-Approval Committee

e. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The board at the time of constitution of each committee fixes the terms of reference and also delegates
powers from time to time.

a. Audit Committee - During the year the Audit Committee had met on 26.06.2018, 29.09.2018, 06.12.2018,
28.03.2019

b. Risk Management Committee - During the year the Risk Management Committee had met on
29.09.2018 and 28.03.2019.

¢. Asset Liability Committee -During the year the Asset Liability Committee had met on 26.06.2018,
29.09.2018, 06.12.2018, 28.03.2019

d. Debt-Approval Committee -During the year the Debt-Approval Committee had met on 28.09.2018.

e. Nomination & Remuneration Committee - During the year the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
had met on 26.06.2018 and 29.09.2018.

15. Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

16. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

With reference to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Your Directors state
that—

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) Your directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) Your directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the ontfirRyaqd for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;



(d) Your directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) Your directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17. Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 M/s. S.R.
Batliboi& Co. LLP were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 9" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders held on 28" September, 2018 to hold office till the conclusion of 13"
AGM.

The Company has received certificate(s) of eligibility in accordance with Section 141 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules iIssued there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re—enactment(s) for the time being in force), from S.R. Batliboi& Co. LLP.

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed to this report.

18. Auditors’ Report
The Statutory Auditors in their report have expressed a qualified opinion which is reproduced hereinunder:

“According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements as at March 31, 2019:

The Company’s internal financial controls over system change management were not operating effectively on
account of certain instances of lack of segregation of duties and adequate review controls to monitor system
changes. Further, the Company’s internal financial controls over user access management were not operating
effectively as observed in certain instances of delays in deactivating users with access to information systems. We
believe that such material weakness in the internal financial controls over information systems could result in
material misstatement in the Company’s financial statement balances and presentation and disclasure of financial
statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the above, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and except for the possible effects of the material weokness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2019.” \MCYOﬁ,,‘




The Audit Committee of the Board has considered the qualified opinion of the Auditors, sought responses from the
Management and deliberated on practical solutions to address the matters raised. The Management will take
steps to further strengthen their Change Management process with regard to segregation of developer and
deployer functions for change management. With regards to the synchronization of the access control with the
date of exit of employees, this is practically difficult to implement due to the dispersed nature of the Company’s
operations and the time lag between an employee’s exit from the Company and the access being blocked. Further
strengthening of the internal audit on this issue and the blocking of access after a period of inactivity, will ensure
that the possibility of mishandling of outgoing users, if any will be identified quickly and addressed. The Board took
note that despite this lack of synchronization, no instance of misstatement of financial transactions or statements
was reported during the financial year.

A detailed report on the Change Management Process followed by the Company byMr. Sanku Lahiri — Head (IT)
has been attached to this report as Annexure 4.

19. n ernal

The Company has in place the mechanism to assess, monitor & mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the meetings of the Risk Management
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and
complexity of its operations. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the
Board. The Board of Directors reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s Internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations.

20. Extract of the Annual Retum

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return is annexed as Annexure 1.

21. Related party transactions

All contracts or arrangements with related parties, entered into or modified during the financial year, were
on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. No material contracts or arrangements with
related parties were entered into during the year under review. Further, the prescribed details of related
party transactions of the Company in Form No. AOC-2, in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in the Annexure to this Report. (Annexure 2).




The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year under review are given below.

(a) Conservation of energy

The particulars as required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of
energy have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the
year under review.

(b) Technology absorption

The Company has continued developing its in-house software METIS in order to create a comprehensive
technology-driven workflow across the organization. All loan processes move through the system and each
loan file is traceable in real time with its current stage along with movement timelines. Some of the major
implementations completed during the financial year 18-19 are given below.

1. Feature for calculating and adjusting Broken Period Interest has been implemented. This has significantly
reduced the cost and TAT for collection of Broken Period interest.

2. Feature has been implemented for pre-disbursal and post-disbursal checklist and validations.

3. Platform for capturing all records and documents of HR master has been implemented.

4, Managing leave and attendance records for all employees of the Company is now done in METIS platform
only.

5. A separate dedicated module for Branch audit has been developed and implemented.

6. Capturing legal notices and generating different types of SOA depending on the legal cases are now done
through METIS.

7. Provision was created to accept collections on Written Off accounts along with the applications of related
accounting entries.

8. Recording and maintenance of Fixed Asset register has been implemented.

The total cost moved to Software Work in Progress (SWIP) during the year under review is given below. Also,
the total cost of the modules capitalized in FY 17-18 is given below

SWIP booked in FY 17-18 :NiL
Capitalized in FY 17-18 : Rs.158,68,929/-

(c) Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outflow

Foreign Exchange Inflow: Nil
Foreign Exchange Outflow: Nil




thg;g which are mble to the central gg!g m ment

There were no such reporting by the auditor under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable. The Notes on financial statements are seif-
explanatory, and needs no further explanation.

24. Significant/material orders passed by the Regulators:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

25. Particulars of Employees:

In accordance with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the
name and other particulars of employees are to be set out in the annexure forming part of the Annual
Report. The details are set out in Annexure -3

26. Empjoyee Stock Option Plan:

The Company has Employee Stock Option Plan for its Employees/ Directors. The Company has not provided
any grants and there has not been any vesting under the Stock Option Scheme to the employees/Directors
during the year under review.

27. Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
requirements of the sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) Act,
2013 (“Sexual Harassment Act”) and rules framed thereunder. YourCompany believes in providing a safe and
harassment free workplace for every individual and endeavors to create and provide an environment that is
free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No
cases of Sexual Harassment were reported during the year under review, pursuant to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

28. Vigil Mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company as part of the “Vigil Mechanism” has in place a “Whistle Blower Policy” to deal with instances
of fraud and misappropriations, if any. During the year under review no whistle blower complaint was
received.

29. Transfer of unclaimed dividend to investor e nd

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend in the last year, the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.




30. Acknowledgements

YourDirectors placeon recordtheirgratitudeforthecontinuingsupportof
Shareholders,BankersandBusinessassociatesatalllevels.

* For and on behalf of the Board
Swarna Pragati Housing Micro Finance Privatelimited
Date: 03/09/2019
Place: Bengaluru
/4
Anuradha Ramachandran Abhijeet Sudhakar Kudva

Director Director
DIN.: 01983108 DIN.: 03042087




Annexure 1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31* March, 2019
of

SWARNA PRAGATI HOUSING MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN : U65922TN2009PTC101093
ii) Registration Date : 05/01/2009
iiii) Name of the Company : Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the : Company Limited by Shares/
Company Indian Non-Government Company

v) Address of the Registered Office : Amuthalakshmi Villa, Piot

and contact details No.20, 2™ Floor, Bhaskar Street, VGN Mahalakshmi Nagar,
Extension Vilt, Ayanmabakkam, Thiruverkadu — 600077
vi} Whether listed company :No

vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any: NA
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Al the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover
of main products / Product/ service of the company
services

1. Interest Income 6492




nt. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.
No

and

Address of the
Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

NA

Vi SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders beginning of the year the year Chan
% ge
duri
D | Physical Total % of D | Physical Total % of
e Total e Total
m Shares m Shares | the
a a year
t t
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
5791873 5791873 17.11% 5791873 5791873 | 17.11% | 0%
(a) Individual/HUF
(b) Central Govt
(c) State Govt (s)
{d) Bodies Corp*.
(e} Banks / FI
(f) Any Other....
5791873 | 5791873 | 17.11% 5791873 | 5791873 | 17.11% | 0%
Sub-total (A) (1):-
(2) Foreign
{a) NRls -
Individuals
{b) Other -
Individuals
{c) Bodies Corp.
(d) Banks / Fi
{e) Any Other....
5791873 | 5791873 | 17.11% 5791873 | 5791873 | 17.11% | 0%
Sub-total (A) (2):-




Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(AN1+{AN2)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds

{b) Banks / FI

(c) Central Govt

(d) State Govt(s)

(e} Venture Capital
Funds

(f) Insurance Companies

(g) Fils

(h) Foreign Venture
Capital

Funds

(i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B){1):-

2. Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

{b} Individuals

{i) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal share
capital uptoRs. 1 lakh

{ii} Individual
shareholders




holding nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

{c) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)}(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

Others

AavishkarGoodwell india 12085737 | 12085737 | 35.70% 12085737 | 12085737 | 35.70% | 0%
Microfinance

Development Company

Il Limited

Aavishkaar Venture 15127 15127 0.04% 15127 15127 0.04% | 0%
Management  Services

Private Limited

Swarna Pragati Welfare 1480500 14,80,500 | 4.37% 1480500 14,80,500 | 4.37% | 0%
Trust*

Zephyr Peacock India 9893823 9893823 29.23% 9893823 9893823 29.23% | 0%
Fund Il Limited

ON Mauritius 883804 883804 2.61% 883804 883804 2.61% | 0%
MA Alagappan Holdings 6,31,793 6,31,793 1.87% 6,31,793 6,31,793 1.87% | 0%
Private Limited

Prashant Thakker & 76049 76049 0.22% 76049 76049 0.22% | 0%
Reena Thakker

letu J T Lalvani, Partner, 108222 108222 0.32% 108222 108222 0.32% | 0%
Telfund Finance

Company

Primarc- | Venture

Advisory LLP 198898 198898 198898 0.59% | 0%




Gaurang Vinod Desai

Vandana Singla

Advik Holdings Private
Limited

Polaris Banyan Holding
Private Limited

Anand Naik

Vikram Gandhi
PramodBhasin

Sub-total (C)

Grand Total
(A+B+C + others)

76049

39487

64350

1462416

19500

584966

438725

28059446

33851319

76049

39487

64350

1462416

19500

584966

438725

28059446

33851319

0.22%

0.12%

0.19%

4.32%

0.06%

1.73%

1.30%

82.89%

100%

76049

39487

64350

1462416

19500

584966

438725

28059446

33851319

76049

39487

64350

1462416

19500

584966

438725

28059446

33851319

0.22%

0.12%

0.19%

4.32%

0.06%

1.73%

1.30%

82.89%

100%

F

F 2 2 F

F

*The Company had extended loans to Swarna Pragati Employees Welfare Trust (Trust’) for purchase of shares

of the Company.

** The Company’s paid up share capital includes 4431119 Preference Shares.

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.
No

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of | %
of the year the change
year In share

holding
during
the
year

No. of % of %of No. of % of % of

Shares total Shares | Shares total Shares




Shares | Pledge Shares Pledge
ofthe |d/ of the d/
compan | encum compan | encum
y bered y bered
to total to total
shares shares
1. |A Ramesh | 4087482 | 12.07% | 0% 4087482 | 12.07% | 0% 0
Kumar
2. | Raj Kumar | 817495 2.41% 0% 817495 | 2.41% 0% 0
Singh
3. | Sasi Bhusan | 156661 0.46% 0% 156661 | 0.46% 0% 0
Dash
4. | Mukesh Kumar | 272498 0.80% 0% 272498 | 0.80% 0% 0
5. | Mohammed 457737 1.35% 0% 457737 | 1.35% 0% 0
Sameer
Siddiqui
(iil) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning during the year
of the year
No. of | % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the company
company
At the beginning of the year 5791873 | 17.11% 5791873 | 17.11%
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the NiL NIL
Year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 5791873 | 17.11% 5791873 | 17.11%




(iv). Shareholding pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRS and ADRS):
Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl. No. 1 beginning of the year year
Aavishkaar Goodwell | No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
India shares of the company
Microfinance the
Development company
Company ]
Limited
At the beginning of 12085737 35.70% 12085737 35.70%
the year
Changes during the year: NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 12085737 35.70% 12085737 35.70%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)
Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl. No. 2 beginning of the year year
Zephyr Peacock India | No. of shares | % oftotal | No. of shares % of total shares of
Fund Ili Limited shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 9893823 29.23% 9893823 29.23%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NIL
At the End of the year ( or | 9893823 29.23% 9893823 29.23%

on the date of separation,
if

Separated during the

year)




Shareholding

at the

Cumulative shareholding during the

§l. No. 3 beginning of the year year
Swarna Pragati Employees | No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
Welfare Trust shares of the company

the

company
At the beginning of 14,80,500 4.37% 14,80,500 4.37%
the year
Changes during the year NIL
At the End of the year ( or | 14,80,500 4.37% 14,80,500 4.37%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)

Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the

Si. No. 4 beginning of the year year

Polaris Banyan Holding | No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
Private Limited shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 1462416 4.32% 1462416 4.32%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 1462416 4.32% 1462416 4.32%

on the date of separation,
if

Separated during the

year)




Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Si.No. 5 beginning of the year year
ON Mauritius No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 883804 2.61% 883804 2.61%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 883804 2.61% 883804 2.61%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)
Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
SI. No. 6 beginning of the year year
MA Alagappan Holdings | No. of shares | % oftotal | No. of shares 9% of total shares of
Private Limited shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 631793 1.87% 631793 1.87%
the year
Changes during the year: NIL NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 631793 1.87% 631793 1.87%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)




Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl. No.7 beginning of the year year
Vikram Gandhi No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 584966 1.73% 584966 1.73%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NIL
At the End of the year { or | 584966 1.73% 584966 1.73%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)
Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl.No. 8 beginning of the year year
PramodBhasin No.of shares | % oftotal | No.ofshares | % of total shares of
shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of 438725 1.30% 438725 1.30%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 438725 1.30% 438725 1.30%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)




Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl. No. 9 beginning of the year year
Jetu J T Lalvani, Partner, | No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
Telfund  Finance shares of the company
Company the
company
At the beginning of 108222 0.32% 108222 0.32%
the year
Changes during the year NIL NiL
At the End of the year ( or | 108222 0.32% 108222 0.32%
on the date of separation,
if
Separated during the
year)
Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding during the
Sl. No. 10 beginning of the year year

Prashant Thakker & Reena | No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
Thakker shares of the company

the

company
At the beginning of 76049 0.22% 76049 0.22%
the year

NIL NiL

At the End of the year ( or | 76049 0.22% 76049 0.22%

on the date of separation,
if

Separated during the

year)

et



{v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: -

sl. Name Shareholding at the | Date wise | Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the Year (as | Increase/D | during the year (01/04/2018
on 01/04/2018) ecrease in | to 31/03/2019)
Shareholdi
ng during
No. of Shares | % of total the year No. of | % of total
Shares of | SPECHYINg | gnaras shares of the
the :::sons Company
company for
increase/d
ecrease
A Directors
1. A. Ramesh | 4087482 12.07% 4087482 12.07%
Kumar
V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the
beginning
of the financial year 123,74,29,187 - - 123,74,29,187
i} Principal Amount
i) Interest due but not
paid
iii) Interest accrued but
not due
Total {i+ii+iii) 123,74,29,187 - 123,74,29,187
Change in Indebtedness
during
the financial year
» Addition 18,00,00,000 - 18,00,00,000
* Reduction 41,95,04,908 41,95,04,908
Net Change
(23,95,04,908) {23,95,04,908)




VI.

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year - -
i) Principal Amount
99,34,25,498 99,34,25,498
ii} Interest due but not
paid
ii} Interest accrued but
not due 44,98,780 44,98,780
Total (i+il+iil) 99,79,24,279 - - 99,79,24,279
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Amount
R
e
1. m | Gross salary
u
n {(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
€ | income-tax Act,
r |1961
a
t | (b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
i Income-tax Act, 1961
o
n (c) Profits in lieu of salary under
2. Stock Option
3. 0 | Sweat Equity
4. o | .Commission
t |-as % of profit
hoL others, specify...
5 ¢ Others, please specify
T | Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act




directors:

sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No. Amount
1. Independent Director
» Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
¢ Commission
« Others, please specify
Sitting fees
Total (1)
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
» Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
¢ Commission
e Others, please specify
Consulting fees paid as per
contract
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA
¢) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD.
Key Managerial Personnel (in Rs.) I
CEO CFO
SL Particulars of Mr. Amit Mr. Company
no. Remuneration Ranjan Mohammad sm"y Total
Biswal* Sammer Lakshmi
Siddiqui*
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per 57,70,992 32,98,474 95,53,733
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, \
1961 o




(b) Value of
perquisites w/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please
specify

Total

57,70,992

32,98,474

4,84,267 95,53,733

*Ms. Lakshmi Raghupathy resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f 22.11.2018

VL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Date: 03/09/2019
Place: Bengaluru

Anuradha Ramachandran
Director
DIN.: 01983108

For and on behalf of the Board

Swarna Pragati Housing Micro Finance Privatelimited
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“ -
Abbhijeet Sudhakar Kudva
Director
DIN.: 03042087
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FORM NO. AOC-2

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : NA

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Sl.

No.

Name(s) of the related party

Nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

{e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Sl.

No.

Name(s) of the related party

Nature
contract

of

Duration of
Contract

Value

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board:

(8) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

Si.

No.

Name(s) of the related party

Nature of relationship

1

A.Ramesh Kumar

Chairman




(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c}) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

Sl Name(s) of the related party Nature of | Duration of | Value
No. contract Contract
1 A.Ramesh Kumar Lease As per the | Rs.216000/-

Agreement for | agreement
the Registered
office of the
Company

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

{f) Amount paid as advances, if any 2 Nil

(g) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188: NA

For and on behalf of the Board
Swarna Pragati Housing Micro Finance Privatelimited

Date: 03/09/2019
Place: Bengaluru

W

Anuradha Ramachandran Abhijeet Sudhakar Kudva
Director Director
DIN.: 01983108 DIN.: 03042087




PARTICULARS OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEE’S REMUNERATION

SL Name Designation | Qualification | Age | Remunerati | Date of | Last
No. & Experience on received | Commencem | Employment
(inRs) ent of | held befors
Employment | joining the
Company
1. Amit  Ranjan | Chief B.Sc,MBA |35 57,70,992/- | 30/10/2017 | Senior VP-
Biswal Executive Head of
Officer He has more Operations  at
than 10 years SpandanaSphoo
with excellent rthy Financial
analytical Limited
skill and
leadership
experience in
operation and
Strategic
Management ]
2. Sameer Siddiqui | Chief B.E., MBA, |35 32,98,474/- | 01/01/2011 | Project
Financial MA - Manager at
Officer & | Economics Asia  Pragati
Chief He has been Capfin Private
Operating closely Limited
Officer associated
with

academic and
research work
in
microfinance
and housing
microfinance
and is also
pursuing  his
PhD in
Economics.

He has more
than 10 years
of experience
with MNCs
and has spent
last 4 years
working
extensively
with
NGOs/MFIs
and HFC in

designing and




piloting
innovative
models in
housing
microfinance

Sanku Lahiri

Vice
President - IT

M.Sc
Computer &
Information
Science

He has more
than 15 years
of experience
in the field of
Information
Technology,
majorly  in
financial
domain.

41

23,96,450/-

22/11/2013

Manager IT at
Asia  Pragati
Capfin Private
Limited

Govindarajan
Kannan

Sr. Vice
President -
Business

B.com,
P.GD.B.A in
Business
Administratio
n and M.BA

He has
23yrs+
experience in
Sales and
Retail
Lending
Products Like
Home loans,
Two-wheeler
Loans

50

9,54,200/-

31/10/2018

Axis Bank

Prashant Kumar

Vice
President-
Business

B.sc IT and
PGDBM

He has 7+
years of
experience in
Sales and
Business

Management.

36

18,21,340/-

30/01/2018

Fullerton India
Credit Co. Ltd

Binu Mathew

Vice-
President -
HR

MBA he has
11 years of
experience in
HR and
Administratio
n

35

11,50,824/-

08/01/2018

Armaan
Financial
Services.




7. Krusch P. | Vice B.A, LLB|48 11,59,815/- } 28/05/2018 | Sakthi Finance
Antony President- and Masters Limited &
Legal in Business Group of
Law. Companies.
He has 17 +
years of
Experience.
8. Arun Kumar | Vice B.com, MBA | 36 10,68,514/- | 26/04/2018 | Bajaj Financial
Agarwal President - Services
Learning and | He has
Development | experience of
9 years in
Learning and
Development.
9. Sudhanshu Regional P.GDM 32 13,38,244/- | 06/02/2018 | His Las:
Sekhar Manager assignment was
He has 9+ with MSM
years of Microfinance
experience in
Housing
Finance
Industries.
10. | Meenakshi Sr. Manager | Chartered 28 3,30,381/- |} 03/10/2018 | Tata
Dholwani Financial Accountant Consultancy
Analyst Services.
For and on behalf of the Boa

Date: 03/09/2019
Place: Bengaluru

Swarna Pragati Housing Micro Finance Private

Anuradha Ramachandran

Director
DIN.: 01983108

»

Abhijeet Sudhakar Kudva
Director
DIN.: 03042087




Change Management Process

Change Management are broadly divided into two parts,
a) Change in the front end
b) Change in the backend / database

» For change management in front end

There are several tools available in market for change management in front end. Bitbucket is one of them and
widely used in the industry. We started using this tool from the last quarter of FY17-18. However, any changes
before that were maintained in hard copies. So for the first three quarters of FY17-18 hard copies were
produced as the evidences for change management while for the last quarter it was produced by extracting log
from the Bitbucket tool. The same was provided to the IT Team of statutory auditor’s {'ITGC team’).

For FY18-19 each and every change in the front end have been routed through the Bitbucket tool. We have a
ticketing system called Freshdesk where users raise their requirement. A developer works on the code against
that ticket, submits a change request in Bitbucket tool with reference to the ticket number and Head IT
approves the request in the Bitbucket tool. No developer can deploy any change in the production by passing
the approval of Head — IT. The same has also been provided to the ITGC team.

As per the current process which has been adopted since last quarter of 2017-18, even a change of a single
character anywhere in the front end code must be recorded in Bitbucket tool and have approval of Head -1IT
to get deployed in production environment.

» For change management in backend/database

There Is no tool like Bitbucket is available for the database. Changes in the database are done through stored
procedures or functions and for the deployment of those no maker-checker facility is available. For FY17-18,
we produced hard copy evidences on sample basis as requested by the ITGC team.

In the course of our discussions during the audit with the ‘ITGC team’ and internal assessment, we started
using the ticket numbers from Freshdesk for keeping track of changes in the database. We have manually
maintained link between the ticket number through which change was requested and the name of the
procedure/function in which the change has been done. Last year (2018) audit started sometime around June
and hence from July onwards we started maintaining this record in Excel. The same has been shared with ‘ITGC
team’ as well.




The ITGC team has raised following observations in the course of their audit for FY 2019 with respect to change
management:,

i) Such records are not available for the month of Apr to Jun 2018. We started this practice from July
2018 onwardsbased on our internal assessment in the course of statutory audit for the financial
year 2017-18.

ii) Tickets are raised by layman users in their own language. Changes are done in the
procedures/functions by the developers as per the requirement of system logic. Therefore, it is not
possible to directly link the ticket and the procedure by looking into the text in the ticket raised
and the name of the procedure.

As far as the Change Management in SwarnaPragati is concerned, the processes have been substantially
improved in FY2018-19 compared to the previous FY.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other ethical
responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generaily
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates tha_t are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
}\ operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
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preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may invoive
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. if
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

F
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As

required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

«©

(@

(e)

()

@

(h)

For S.R.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicabie to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

BATLIBOI & CO. LLP

ICAl Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
LChartered Accountants

ch p v

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Member

ship Number: 102102

UDIN: 19102102AAAAYL9846

Mumbai

September 3, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and reguiatory
requirements’ of our report of even date

Re: Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

0]

(i)

Giip)

(iv)

w)

(vi)

@

(b)

©

(vii) (@)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties included in fixed assets of the Company and accordingly the requirements under
paragraph 3(iXc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(iiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the products/services of the
Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have not generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit have not been serious. As informed,
provisions relating to duty of custom, duty of excise, sales-tax and value added tax are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. As informed, provisions relating to duty of custom,
duty of excise, sales-tax and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and services tax and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dis t{tg, are as_follpws:

“Warheofthe SAFES |

hure of

Income Tak, 1961

income 26,069,428 5,213,886 | FY 2015-16 Commissioner
Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)

*paid under protest
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(viii)

(ix)

x)

xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank, debenture holders
or government.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer, hence not commented upon.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization
were gainfully invested In liquid assets payable on demand.

We have been informed that during the year there was an instance of misappropriation of cash by
employee of the Company aggregating to Rs. 223,830; As informed, services of the employee have
been terminated and the Company is in the process of taking legal action against the employee.
The outstanding balance (net of recovery) aggregating Rs. 223,830 has been fully provided in the
books of account.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAl Firm's Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
. Chartered Accountants

l\‘m. -~ :a'-’/

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 19102102AAAAYL9846

Mumbai

September 3, 2019
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other fegal and regulatory
requirements’ of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Swarna Pragati Housing
Microfinance Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controis over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
‘could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements as at March 31, 2019:

The Company’s internal financial controls over system change management were not operating effectively
on account of certain instances of lack of segregation of duties and adequate review controls to monitor
system changes. Further, the Company’s internal financial controls over user access management were not
operating effectively as observed in certain instances of delays in deactivating users with access to
information systems. We believe that such material weakness in the internal financial controls over
information systems could result in material misstatement in the Company's financial statement balances
and presentation and disclosure of financial statements.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the above, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and except for the possible effects of the material weakness
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2019.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of Swarna
Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and
the related Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was considered
in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2019 financial
statements of Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited and this report does not affect our report
dated September 3, 2019, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
artered Accountants

R ¥ L’c ’)"‘V - .:)/-—"—
per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 19102102AAAAYL9846

Mumbai
September 3, 2019
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Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Privete Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

S -

sr. Nots No. As at As at
Particutars
No __MQL%LM?._____M%:LMQ_
A [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1}|Sharehoiders’ funds
{a) Share capitat 3 36,80, 19,380 36,80, 19,380
{b} Reserves and sufplus 4 14,8533 734 %2,22 913
51,6553 114 112,42 263
2){Non-carrent Babilities
(a) Lona-term borrowinas 5 50,75,62,831 82,52,88,287
{b) Other lona-term kabitites & 4109962 15.69,663
{c) Long-term orowisions 7 4,58 55241 460,92 304
64,75 28,004 87,2960 455
3}{Current liabilities
{a) Trade pavables 8
Micro Small and Medium Enteronses - -
Others 1,05.82,982 92,866,794
{b) Other current kabilities 9 41,19,45,437 42,24,96,299
{€) Short-term provisions 10 54,07, 446 4849 %
42,79 30,865 43,66,
TOTAL 1,59,20,21,013 1,98,68,15,126 |
B8 ASSETS
1)|Non-current assets
(3) Fxed Assets ‘
{i) Property. Plant and Equipment 11 1.12,72.610 1,05,41,626
{n) intangible assets 11 1,93,02,670 1,54,56,543
{W) Capital work in progress 19,15.213 1.77,15.213 |
3,24,90,493 4,37,13,382
(b} Deferred tax assets (net) 12 - 1,00,37,664
{c) Long-term ioans and advances 13 96,17,41,867 1,08,52,94,178
(d) Othes non-cuerent assets 4 57 20,595 1662734
1,05 §§§ 1 zaﬁ §7'_ @
2}{Current sssets )
(a) Curent nvestments 15 1,05,05,650 8,33,51,093
(b) Cash and bank balances 16 2,63,60,350 18,28,01.911
{c) Short-term loans and advances 17 45,78,60,204 439793161
{d) Other current assets 18 37341832 40161003
§3,20,68 056 75,6107 169 |
YOTAL 1,59,20,2,013 1,98,68,15,126 |
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an inteqral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
ICAI Firm Regestration No. 301003E/E300005 Swama Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Chartered Acoountants
" .
Q{‘ e }/ ) y
per Shrawan Jalan Abhijeet Sudhaksr Kudva Ramaschandran
Partner Dwector Drrector
Membership No 102102 OIN No (03042087 DIN No. 01983108
Place Place:

Piace Mumbat
Date September 03, 2019

Bangalore
Date September 03, 2019

Pebadig

Moh e Sidd
Ctuef Financial Officer
Place

Nagpur
Date September 03, 2019

Bangalore
Date ' September 03, 2019




Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note For the year ended For the year ended
Sr. No Particulars No. March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
¢ ¢

I income
(a) | Revenue from operations 19 30,16,09,308 33.23,17.246
{b) | Other income 20 1,78,80,943 1,78,62.212]

Total income (1 31,84,90,261 38,01,79458
H Expenses
(a) | Employee benefits expense 21 11,55,74,310 7.50,19,777
(b) | Finance costs 2 15,65,56,452 17,04,21,231
(c) | Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 1,65,66,412 75,85,385
(d) | Other expenses 24 6,14,32,779 7.34,80,513
(e) | Loan losses and provisions P 12,07,43,186, 2,668 53571

Total expenses (i) 47,08,73,152 35,31,60477
M Profit / (Loss) before tax (I- it) (15,13,82.901) (29,81,019)
v Tax expense:
(@) | Curmrent tax expense - 51,48,000
(b) | (Excess) provision for tax refating to prior years {(19,227) -
(¢) | Deferred tax (credit)/charge 1,00,37,664 (67.55,860)

Total Tax expense (IV) 1,00,18 437 (16,07,860)
v Profit / (Loss) for the year (V) -18. 1,338 -13
VI |Eamings per share (EPS) (nominal value of ¥ 10

each):

Basic EPS ( Rs. per share) 26 477 -0.04
Diluted DPS (Rs. per share) 28 -4.77 -0.04

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

(L\(Lwﬂ’ "/

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai _
Date - September 03, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Swamna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limnited

Abhijeet Sudhakar Kudva
Director

DIN No. 03042087

Ptace. Bangaiore

Date . September 03, 2019

i

Mohammad Sameer Siddiqui

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Nagpur
Date : September 03, 2019

7.

Anuradha Ramachandran
Director

DIN No. 01983108

Place: Bangalore

Date : September 03, 2019
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Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
. v v € 4
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax (15,13,82,901) (29,81,019)
Adiustments for.
iation and amortisation 1,65,66,412 75.85,385
Loan losses and provision 12,07,43,180 2,66,53571
Provision for ather doubtful advances 35,62,000 -
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated ab
Interest on depesits (53,88,822) (71.61,502)
Employee stock options expense 7.12,180 2,725
Dividend on mutual funds - (60,55,673)
Profit on redumption of mutual fund (71,54,557) (7.50,719)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 20,668
12,90,40,489 2,02,85,454
Operating profit before working capital changes (2.23,42,412) 1.73,04, 435|
Changes in working capital
Adjusted for (increase) / decresse in assels
Loans and advances (26.,27.429) 6,77.16,128
Other assets 1,58,50,736 (29,37,189)
Adjusted for increase / (decrease) in kabilities
Trade payables 13,111,138 18,74,836
Other fiabilities 13,48,884 (54,86,423)
Provisions (3.60,064) 2589811
1,55,23,266 68,37,57,161
Cash used in operations {68,19,146) 8,10,81,597
Net income tax (paid) (54,85,442) (30,46,011)
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A) (1,23,04,588)| 1,71,16,686
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and purchase of intangible assets
(53,45,249) (1,50,95,541)
Sale of property, plant and equipment . 50,000
Interest on deposits 82.99,378 41,26,238
Purchase of investments in mutual fund {35,50,00,000) (26,47,36,857)
Dividend from mutual fund - 60,55,673
Sale of investment in mutual funds 43,50,00,000 40,15,81,184
Net cash flow (used in) / from investing activities (B) 8,20,54,127 13,10,80,698




\

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings 18,00,00,000 35,50,00,000
Repayment of long term borrowings {41,70,81,103) (47,19,31,835)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) (23,70,91,103) (11,69,31,835)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (16,64,41,564) 9,21,64,449
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ysar 18,98,01,911 9,76,37 464
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year (refer note 18) 2,33,80,350 18,98,01,811
Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been propared under the “indirect Method “ as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 ‘Cash Flow Statements' notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Compenies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

As per our report of even date

For $.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICA! Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005 Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Qbm"" > | .
v :

per Shrawan Jalan Abhijeet Sudhakar Kudva Anuradha Ramachandran
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 102102 DIN No. 03042087 DIN No. 01883108
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Place. Mumbai Date : September 03, 2019 Date : September 03, 2019

Date : September 03, 2019

Wbk e
Moh dS Siddiqui Megha Mohunta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Nagpur Membership No. F 10009
Date : September 03, 2019 Place: Nagpur

Date ; September 03, 2019
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Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Privats Limitad
Notas to the financial stataments for the year ended March 31, 2018

1

24
(a)

(b}

fe}

(o)

Corporate Information

Swama Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited (the Company’) was incorporsted in India on January 05, 2008 1o provide housing finance in respect of new house / habitat and uwmd.uon and
repairs/ renovations of existing shakers by way of productive housing in Indian rursl areas. The Company is registered as a housing finance without g public d: ith
National Hosuing Bani (NHB) with effact from August 31, 2009 having registration no. 08.0075.09

Basis of of

The finandial have been in L with i nc in india (indian GAAP') 1o conply in afl materisl resp with the ing (AS)
notified under saction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act) read together with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 snd the Cs A Rules,
20186, The Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Co ies (NHB) Dire 2010 (as (the NHB Directi ,wwwmmmm The financiai statements

have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convantion except as detalled in note na. 2.1(h). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and
am ennsiktant with thasa usar in tha nmvinus vaar

y of "

Current/ Non Current classification of assets and liabilities

As required by i, the Ce has ified assets and lmbilities into cument and non-cument based on the operating cycle. An opersting cyce is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their reaksation in cash or cash equivaients. Since in case of Housing Finance Company nomal operating cycke is not readily determinabie, the operating cycle has been
considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates

The praparation of financiat statements in conformity with indian GAAP raquires the to make j £ and ions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and ladiities and the disciosure of contingent abiities, at the end of the rep 9 ponod gh these are based on the management's best knowledge of cument
events and actions, inty about thess and esti could resul in the g & material adj to the canying of assets or habilties in future periods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of d di istion and losses, ¥ any. The cost price, ing costs i
critenia are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the assat to is working condttion for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebales nn deducted in amiving at thi purchase price.

Subsequent axpendiure related to an item of fixed asset is added 1o its book vaius only i R increases the future benefils from the existing asset beyond is previously assessed stsndard of
performance. Al other axpansas on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repsir and maintenance axpanditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged 1o the statement of proft and bss for the
period during which such expenses an incurred.

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of fixed assets sre as the
statement of profit and ioss when the asset is derecognized.

the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognized in the

Imanqiblo assets

assets [ are on inttiat ion at cost. The cost of gible assets ied in an ion in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date
of amabmunon Following initial recognition, intangible assets are camed at cost less ization and losses, if any. intemally generatad intangibie assets,

costs, are not eapk and i refle in the of profit snd loss in the year in which the expenditure is incumed.
intangible assets are amorized on a written down value basis oves the esty useful % ife. The Ca uses & ion that the usefui We of an intangible asset wil not
exceed ten years from the date when the asset is availsble for use. if the persuasive evidence exists to the affect that useful e of an intangible asset exceads ten years, the Company amostizes the
intangibie asset over the best sstimate of s useful Me. Such intangble aseets and intangibie assets not yet avaiiabie for use am tested for either.indivk or at the cash-
generating unit level Al other intangidle assets are for i there is an indk that the asset may be impaired.
The nmonuuon pcnod and the ion method are at least at each financial year end. if the expected useful ife of the asset is si different from previ £ the
ion period is changed gly. if there has been a significant change in the expected patiem of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed 1o reflact the
changed pattem. Such ges are forin with AS-5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prios Period ltems and Changes in Accounting Polcies.
Depreciation on Property, plant and equi| of a
Depraciabls amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount whmm iovcod less its estimated residual value.
Depraciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the written down vakie method as per the: useful ife in Schedule |l to the C iss Aci, 2013.
The Company has used the following rates (0 provide depreciation on ks fixed assets.
Particulars Useful lives estimated by the Management { As specified in Schedule Il
of Companies Act, 2013)
Computers. Servers 6 ysars
Computers: other than servers 3 years
Office Equipment S ysars
Fumitures & Fixtures 10 years
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Vehicles S years
Computer Software 5 years
Loans to borrowsrs
Loans are statsd at the amouat advancad, as reduced by the amounts eceived up 1o the balance sheet date.
Investments
Invnstmen\s which are readily ynisabb and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such & ame mada, are as cument i Al other
are ified as long-term Cument i are caried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fakr value except for investment in mutuai funds which are camied at

their Net asset value declared by the mutual fund in accordance with the NHB Mastar Directions.

vk Lo,




)

(0]

[}

(k)

(]

Revanue recognition
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the sconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be rekably measured.

(s} interest income

Interest income on lbans is ecognised by applying interest rate impiict in the contaci. In case of non-performing assets, interest income is recognised on receipt basis in acoordance with the NHB
directions.

{b) income from assignmant
Income on retained interest in the assinned assel. if any, i accounted on an accriual basis, except in case of non-parforming assets wharein interast incoms is COQNIsEd ON rECeipt Dasis in

(¢) Processing fee income
Procassing fee income on ioan is recognead as income in the year in which the ioan is disbursed to the borowers.

(d} Profit/ Loas on sale of investments
Profit/loss eamed on saie of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit or loss on sale of nvestments is determined on the basis of the weighted average cost method.
On disoosal of an investment. the ditference between is camving amount and net dispossi proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement and other employes benefits

Dmm! contrbulion. plang

with the p of the Empk Provident Funds and Miscelaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligbie employees of the Company are entitisd 1o receive benefits with respect to
pmvbent fund. & demod contrbution pian In which both the C: and the monthiy st s ined rate 12% of empioyee’s basic salsry). Company’s contrbution to
Provident Fund is chamed as an expenss in the Statement of Profk and Loss.
Leave penefis

Compensated absences with respect 10 ieave encashment benefits payable (o smpioyses of the Company whils in service, on retisment, death while in service or on temination of smployment with
respect to accumulated leaves outstanding at the year end are accountad for on the basis of an actuadal valuation as st the balence sheet date.

Dot "
Benefits payable o eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit pian i accounted for on the basi of an actuadai valation as at the balance sheet date. in
acoondance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, tha plan provides for ump sum 10 vesied y on death while in service or on lnrmhatbn of employment in an amount
equivalent 10 15 days basic salary for each compieted year of servics. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obiig is ined by the unk
credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the baiance sheet dats through which the obiigations are to be sattied. The resuRant actuarial gain or loss on
change in present value of the defined beneft obligation or change in retum of the pian assats is recognised as an incoms or €xpense in the Statement of Profi and Loss. The sxpectad rstum on
plan assets is based on the assumed rate of retum of such assets.

iLeases

Operating Leass

Whare the Company is lasses

Leases where the lessor effactively ratains substantially all tha risks and benefits of ownership of tho leased asset are as ting ieasas. O ioase are 0! asan
expanse in the statemant of proft and loss on a straight Ine basis over the tenure of the lease.

Taxes on income

Tax expense curment and deferred tax. Cument i [ ] at the amount expecied 10 de paid to the tax authodties in rd with the | 4ax Act, 1961 enacted in
india and ‘ax laws p g in the 18X ions where the C« The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are thosa that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting dau Cument income tax relating 10 kems cognized ducny in equity is recognized in aquity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Defered incame taxes reflsct the impact of timing differences between taxable ncome and accounting ncome originating during the current year and reversal of fiming differences for the earier years.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively snacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in
equity and not in the siatement of profit and loss.

Defermed tax labilties are recognized for all taxabie timing differences. Deferred lax assets are ized for ded: tinung diffi only to the omm that thers is reesonable centainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such defermed hx mh can be reakzed. In situations whers the Ci has b prech or cany forwand tax losses, al
defered tax assets are recoanized onlv ¥ there i virtual L that thev can ba realized acainat future taxable orofits.

The carrying amount of defemed tax assets are st each tin. m The Company writes-down the canying amount of defemed tax asset o the sxiont that & is no longar reasonably
cenain or vitualy certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future hnbb income wil be availsble against which defemed tax asset can be realzed. Any such wite-down is reversad to the extent that
it becomes reasonably certain or vitually centain, as the case may be, that sulficient future taxable income wit be avaiable

Mnmm akemate tax (MAT) paid in a year i charged to the statement of profit and loss as cumrent tax. The C MAT credit as an asset only to the axtent that there is.

il that the Ci wpaymmlnmhxdummmm i.e., the period for which MAT credit is alowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company
(80090201 MAT credit as an asset in ki with the Gui Note on A g for Credit Avaiabls in respect of Minimum Aemative Tax under the income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is
created by way of credit 1o the statement of profi and ioss and shown as "MAT Credk Enllkml.' The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitiement” asset al each reporting date and wites down the
asset to the exten! the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay nonmal tax during the spacified period.

Earnings per Share
Basic eamings per share are cakculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the vear to equity by the wei average number of equity shares outstanding during the yesr.

Diuted eamings per share are cakuisted by dividing the net profit or loss for the year to equity as adj for dividend, interest and other charges to axpanse or income
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as sdjusted for the effects of all diutive polential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only ¥ their conversion 1o equity shares would decrease the net profik per shae from continuing ordinary operations. Potential diutive equity shares ars deamed (o be
converted a5 at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each pariod presented.

pob 4y,
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impairment of assets

The canying amounts of assets are reviewed a8t each baience sheet date  there is any ot L based on factors. An L bss is the
camying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net seling price and value in use. in assessing vaiue in use, the estimated fulure
cash flows are discounted at the pre tax discount rate reflecting cument markst assessment of time valus of money and risks specific to asset.

Alter impai praciation is ided on the revised camrying amount of the asset over its remeining usaful ile.
A previously 9 mpa ioss is or P g on ges in However the canying value after reversal i not increased bayond the camying value that
would have prevailed by ing usual i there was no impaiment.

Foreign currency transactions
(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign Y L are in the ing y. by applying to the foreign cumency amount the ge rate the y and the foreign cumency at the
date of the transaction.
() Conversion

Foreign Y Yy items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary kems which are camed in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign cumency are reported using the

exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

() Exchange Differences
Exchange differences afising on the settieman: of monetary Rems of on reporting Company’s monstary dems st rates different from those at which thay were initially recorded during the year, or
reporied in prev fnancial are 33 income of as 8xpenaes in the ysar in which thay arise.

Expenses on issue of securities

Expenses incured with respect to issuance of securities are debited to i account in with the of Section 52 of the Comoanies Aci, 2013.
Borrowing costs
Borowing costs consists of intarest and other ancliary cost that an entity ncurs in connection with bomowing of funds. Ancillary cos!s incumed in such ings are ons

straight ine basis over the tenure of such bomowings.

Employee share based payments

in case of stock option plan, and di of the employ hare-based pay plans is dons in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employse Share-based
Payments issued by the institute of Ch A of India. The C: cost relating to stock option using the fak value method. Compeansation axpense
is amontised over the vesting period of the option on the straight ine basis.

Asset classification of loans under financing sctivity
in

Loan ane into various L with the NHB Diractions.

(1) Provisioning norms for loans under financing activity .

Conti ision for assets and for doudtful debts is basad on L subject to T d in the NHB

(i} Write off

Loans are wiitten oft by the C based upon 's estimate of utimate recovery (net of recoveries. if any made during the vear).

Provisions

A provision is ised when the C has a present obigation as & resull of past event; it is probable that outflow of resources will be required 1o settie the oblination, in respect of which a
Contingent liabilities

A contingent kabilty is a possible obigation that arises from past svents whose will be confirmed by the or of one ar more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present oblig: that is not 9 it is not bia that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the abiigation. A contingent lisbilty aiso anses n
extremaly rare cases where there is a lability ihat cannot be k cannot be rellably. The Company does not recognize a contingent Rabilty but discioses its existence in

the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at bank including fixed deposk with original maturity penod of three months and short term highly
iquid invesiments with an original maturity of three months or less.
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Pragati H 9 Microfi Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars m:;;m m:‘n‘m
[ [
Authorised
*3.90.00.000 Equdv shares [March 31 2018 400 00.0001 of ¥ 10 each 38.00.00/
“1,10.00.000 Prefarence shares [March 31 2018 1,00,00,0004 of ? 10 each 1 s ocannn

b}

[}

iy

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:

3.38.51.319 Equdty shares [March 31, 2018 3.35.51.319 Shares] of ¥ 10 each 33,85,13.180 33.85,13,190
44 31 119 Proference snares (March 31, 2018 46 31.118] of T 10 each 4.4311,190 4.43.11,190
Less 14.80 500 Equity shares [March 31 2018 14 80.500] of ¥10 each heid n Trust for -1,48 05,000 -1,48,05.000
employees unaer ESOP Scheme#

Tota —titaR,  __SRIN

*The company nas vide ts EGM resolution Gated March 18, 2018 modied t's authonsed capasl from 4,00,00.000 Equdy shares to 3,90,00,000 equrty shares and from
1,00 00,000 Preference shares 10 1,10,00 000 preference shares.

#Represents loan given o ESOP trust for subscription of shares of the Company in accordance with the ESOP scheme

Reconcihabon of the number of shares and g at the begenming and at the end of the reporting period:
As As ot
Particulars Sarch 31,2019 mg’.m
Noof Shares held T Wo.of Siares beid T

Equdy shares

Baiance al the Deginning of the yesr 33851319 338513190 3.38.51 318 3385 13.180

Add Shares ssued dunng the year . . _ . .

Balance at the end of the year 33851319 e 338513,190 33881319 33.85,13,190

0.001% Compuisory Convertibie Profergnce Shases

Balance at the beginning of the year 4431119 44311190 431119 44311190
© Aad Shares ssved dunng the yesl . - -

Less Convertion into Equity Shares — o

Baiance ot the end of the vear X NN 7 X ;X I ” X | N 7Y K]

Terms | Rights attached to equity and preference shares

Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par vaive of Rs 10 per shere Each hoider of Equity shares ts entitied t0 one vote per share. The drvidend, i any. 15

Compuisory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS™)

Voting Rights:
mccs'smmumnmmmmnnmmmm.mmnmmmmncm.m
in computing the CCPS Holders' g for the purp of voting rights, the CCPS Hoiders' entirs sharshokding in the Company (inchuding the hoiding of CCPS) shall
be taken into on sn'as ned bass ctve of the of Equy Shares held by the CCPS Holders

Terms of Conversion:

CCPS convertible mto 1 ione) equity share

The entire issue of CCPS shall be convernble at the option of the CCPS holders. within 7 days of recext notice from the CCPS holcers at the then 3ppHCabie Comversion (abo
a) the axprry of 19 (Nineteen) yoars from 10th December 2015 ) )
b)drequwedbymww,mmemnemdawmm,ua*ndmm&nnmsmdhﬂmm“mdﬁewbwmmmu
¢) upon the occurrence of 8 Liquwdation Event
Thomymmwmmummdmccpsmwmwnpmmalmmmmdmmmy




(i)
(v}

v)
(vi}
{vi)

(a)

®)

(©

(d)

(e)

Details of shares held by the holding company: Né

Details of shares heid by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

-
Name of Sharehoider No.of_Shares heid No.of Shares heid %
Equity ghares
1. Aavishk Goodwell India Microfi 1,20,85,737 35.70% 1,20,85,737 35.70%
Development Company - |l Limited
2. Zepnyr Peacock India Fund 1l Limited 98,93,823 29.23% 98.93,823 28.23%
3. A. Ramesh Kumar 40,87,482 12.07% 40,87 482 1207%
4. Swamna Pragati Employees Welfare Trust 14,80,500 4.37% 14,80,500 4.37%
5. Polaris Banyan Holding Private Limited 14,62,416 4.32% 14,62,416 4.32%
0.001% Comoyisory Convertibig Preference Shares
1. Omudiyar Network Mauntius 38,46,153 86.80% 38,46,153 86.80%
2. Zephvr Peacock India Fund il Limited 5,84.966 13.20% 5,84,966 13.20%
3. Aa dwell india D - - - .
Particulars um:;i-,‘zon m:;i.,;gn
Securities convertible nto equity shares 44.31,118 44,3118
Shares resarved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer note 33) 14,80,500 14.80,500
Agaregate number of shares issued for a consideration other than cash dunng the period of five vears immediatel Nil Nil
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at As at
Particulars

__March31,2019

— March31,2018

Securities Premium Account
Opening balance
Add: Receivad dunng the year
Closing balance

Statutory Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)

Opening balance

Addition during the year
Appropriation during the year
Closing balance

General Reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transfemed from Share options oulstanding account
Closing balance

Share options outstanding account
Opening balance

Add: Cost amortised during the ysar
Less: T d to
Less: T femed to
Closing balance

on tapse of options
Premium A t

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

Add: Profit / (loss) for the year

Less: Transfamed to Statutory Reserve as per Section 28C of NHB Act
Closing balance

-~

Total

28,29,85,132 28,29,74,017
- 11,415
—.2885132 202085132
55,45,397 55,45,397
1,115 .
- 11,115
11918 11.115.00
2,725 22,230
712,160 2,725
- 11,115
. 11,115
714,885 2,725
2.06.78,544 2.20,51,703
(16,14,01,338) (13.73,159)
0 9
149722795 20679544
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$ Pragati g Mi Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Non Current Portion Cutrent Maturitios*
As at As st As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
[4 [ [ 4 X
Secured
Tem loans
- Banks 17.37,79,278 26,81,39,187 10,52,84,000 12,71,02,758
- Others 42,37,83,556 55.71,39,100 29,05,98.668 27,81,15,557
487552031 324240281 ARS8 305218315
" Amount disciosed under the head 'Other cument labiiities’ (Refer note no. 8)
a. Security details for Secured Term loans
1. Term loans of ¥ 99,34,25.499 (Previous vear: ¥ 1,23.05,16.602) is secured by way of Exdusive first chame op portfolio of receivable as accepled to the of of the Company.
2. Term loans of ¥ 29,94,79,171 vious year: € 50,76,41,735) is secured nderl'nmty by cash from i ial instituts ting to € 2.93.75538 (Previous year: I

3,72,88,308).
b. Terms of repayment.

Term loans from Banks and Others-Secursd
As at March 31, 2019

Tenure Rate of interest Repaymant Details Non-Current portion Current Maturities
48-80 months
36-48 months 12.80% t0 13.85% Monthly and guarterty 19,62,18,060 7.01.18.547
24-36 months 12.80% to 14.05% Monthly and quartedy 31,81,05,127 18,30,99,294
12-24 months 14.25% to 15% Monthly 862,38 645 14,26 44 827
|Grand Total $8,75,62,831 3 8
As at March 31, 2018

Tenure Rats of interest Repayment Details Non-Current portion Current Maturities
48-60 months 12.80% to 13.40% | Monthly and quarterty | 26,30,32,284 7.98.52,191
38-48 months 12.80% and 13.30% _| Monthly 32,7514,174 14,11,93.656 |
24-38 months 14% and 14.50% Monthiy 234751828 12,96,78,71
Up to 12 moaths 13.25% to 13.50% Monthly and quartady - 54493,751
(Geand Total 82,52 98,287 40,52,18.318




Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

6.

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

As at As at March 31, 2018
L4 ¢
Retention commission payable to business associates 41,009,962 15,40,156
Rent equalisation 0 20,707
Total “Iﬂlﬁ ; nﬁm
LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at March 31, 2018
Particulars March 31, 2019
[4 [ 4
Provision for standard assets
Housing Loans 27,02,522 31,20.217
Loan Against Property 551,928 4,58.934
Sanitation 252 4357
Income Generating Loans 174 148
Provision for doubtful loans
Housing Loans 3,79,49,807 4,12,01,230
Loan Against Property 9.,84,889 3.04,950
Sanitation 34,260 88,771
income Generating Loans 89,312 20,928
Other Provisions
Provision for doubtful advances 35,62,009 885,770
Total 4@8.2.341 m&
8 TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 _March 31,2018
[ 4 ¢
Trade payabies:
To Micro, Small and Medium . .
Enterprises (Refer note below)
Others 1,05,82,882 92,668,794

ThereuenoMncroandSMEnW o whom the Company owes dues | Which ars cutstanding for more than 45 day a8 at
March 31, 2019. The information as required to be disclosed under Micro, smmmemmmmm
(Act) has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company.




9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
[4 4
Current maturities of long term borrowings [Refer Note 5 above) 39,58.62.688 40.52,18,318
Interest accrued but not due on term 44,98,780 69,12,585
loans
Rent equalisation 29.707 4111
Paysbie to Employees 21,853,009 31,57,385
Excess Money Received from borrowers 33,87,001 2765,577
Statutory dues 58,94,956 28,76,318
Other liabilities 1,22,328 15,24,908
Total 41,19.49.437 42.24,96,299
10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
[4 [4
Provision for standard assets
Housing Loans 16.08.904 16,76,914
Loan Against Property 1,75,766 1,186,487
Sanitation 6.030 84,932
Income Generating Loans 306 22
Provision for empioyee benefits:
Provision for compensated absences 38.16.440 30.90,733
{ii) Provision for gratuity [Refer Note - -
29) :
Total wz& Mmz
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Swarna Pragati Housing Morofinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

12 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABLITY)

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
2 L

Tax effect of iteams constituting deferred tax assets
T n ferred tax t
Provision for standard assets - 14,88,150
Provision for doubtful loan & - 1,18,23,958
advances
Provision for gratuity and other employee benefits - 11,186,793
Disatiowances under Section 43B of the income Tax Act, 1961
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets - 8,52,827
Unamortised processing fees

- 1,52,81,728
Special Reserv - 15,42,729
Unamortised LOC
Unamortised bomowing cost - 37,01,335

. 52,44,0684
Net deferred tax asset - 1,00,37,684

The Company has derecognised deferred tax asset (net) during the year in absence of virtual certainty of eaming su nt
future taxable profits.

13 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
g t

Secured, considered good*
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Housing loans 67,56,30,402 78,23,03,821

Loan against Property 13,79,81,881 11,42,33,546
Secured, considered doubtful*™*
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Housing loans 12,30,88,467 18,28,10,479

Loan against Property 58,90,730 20,33,001
U od, idered good*
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Sanitation 63,038 10,89,295

Income Generating Loans 43,437 36,995
Capital advances 2,201 2,201
Security deposits 6,24,170 156,26,270
Advances recoverabie in cash or in kind or for value to be recaived* 35,70,663 38,80,192
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 1,13,73,262 58.61,820
U ed, idered doubtful**
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Income Generating L.oans ’ 75,482 5,46,592

Santkation 1,40,329 84,197
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for vaiue to be received* 32,57.804 8,85,770
Total 96,17,41,867 1,09,52,94,178

* represents standard assets in accordance with the asset classification policy of the Company (refer note 2.1{r) )
** represents non-performing assets in accordance with the asset classification policy of the Company (refer note 2.1(r) )




‘Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L4 L <
Unamortised borrowing costs §7,20,595 91,62,734
Deposits with financial institutions** 2,00,00,000 2,75.00,000
Deposits with banks (Refer note 18) 4,00,00,000 4,50,00,000
Total 8.57,20.595 8,16.62.734
*“represents deposits lien marked against term loans availed by the Company.
15 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L L4
- UTl Liquid Cash Plan - Institutional - Direct Plan 3432.389 units (Previous year - 29,296.379 1,05,05,650 8,33,51,093
units)
Total 1|°5|°5i°5° 0!33!51 993
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1,05,06,650 8,33,51,093
Aggregate net asset value (NAV) of unquoted investments 1,05,05,650 8,33,51,093
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L4 L4
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash on hand 23,35,293 8,94,075
Balances with banks
(i} In cumrent accounts 2,10,25,057 18,10,74,124 -
(i) in deposit accounts having original maturity less than three months® 1] 78.33.712
2,33,60,350 18,98,01,911
Other Bank Balances
Deposit with original maturity for more than three months but less than twelve 30,00,000 30,00,000
months #
Total ——aR R
Amount disclosed under non-cumrent assets (Refer note no. 14) # 4,00,00,000 4,50,00,000

* includes under lien Nii (Previous Year. € 50,00,000) relating relating to term loans and Nil (Previous Year : 2 15,00,000) against corporate cradit

card.

# represents deposits len marked against term loans availed by the Company.
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Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

17 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at As at
Particulars —March 31,2019 _ March1, 2018
4 (4

Secured, considered good”
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Housing loans 38,97,29,797 38,13,23,601

Loan against Property 4,13,35,301 27258878
Unsecured, considered good*
Loans and advances relating to financing activity

Sanitation 14,90,224 1,60,36,183

Income Generating Loans 75,535 54288
Security deposits 20,84,100 10,209,180
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 2,31,45,247 1,40,90,621

* represents standard assets in accordance with the aseet ciassification policy of the Company (refer note 2.1(r) )

18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 =~ _March 31,2018
€ [ 4

interest accrued on deposits with banks and financial institutions 83,54,895 1,12,65,449
Interest accrued on loans and advances under financing activities 1,51,20.545 1,49,85,700
Unamortised borrowing costs 44,91 412 41,41,847

Deposits with financial institutions** 93,765,000 97.88,308
Total 3,73.41,882 4.01}1&

**represents deposits lien marked against term loans availed by the Company.




Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
[ 4 L4
Financing activity
Interest income 29,05,04,460 32,35,13,777
Processing fee income on loans 92,25,240 54,05,390
Other operating revenue
Income from asset assignment 18,79.608 33.98.079
Total 30,16.09.308 33.23,17,.246
20 OTHER INCOME
Year ended Year ended
Particulars ——March31,2019 = __March31,2018
4 €
Interest on fixed deposits 53,88,822 71,61,502
Interest on delayed collection of deposit from business associates 28,40,989 32,38,888
Dividend income from mutual fund - 60,55,673
Profit on redemption of mutual fund 71,54,557 7,569,719
interest on income Tax Refund 3,00,830 2,15,430
Miscellaneous income 21,085,745 4.31,000
Total 1.78.80.943 1.28.62.212
21 PLOYEE T P
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L4 Lo
Salaries and wages 10.43,65,553 6,83,66,308
Contributions to provident fund 71,39,606 40,46, 472
Gratuity (Refer Note 29) 5,14,635 6,39,717
Staff welfare expenses 28,42,356 32,46,713
Stock option cost (refer note 33) 7,12,160 -
22 FINANCE COSTS
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 __March 31,2018
€ L4
Interest expense 15,04,00,183 16,63,50,088
Ancillary bomowing costs 61.56.269 40.71,143
23 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 __March 31, 2018
T €
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 11) 45,43,610 53,99,396
Amortisation of intangible Assets (Refer Note 11) 1,20.22.802 2185989

Total




l8warna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

24 OTHER EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L4 L4
Rent expenses [Refer Note 31] 79,70,271 68,90,688
Repairs & Maintenance
Building 9,580 10,09,840
Others 12,91,241 14,62,463
Rates & Taxes 38,75,928 41,98,601
Travelling & Conveyance 1,562,29,193 1,50,83,384
Printing & stationery 10,81,501 11,95,816
Communication expenses 13,62,688 26,28,748
Business promotion expenses 5,62,123 8,60,974
Electricity & water charges 10,95,110 11,70,499
Commission to business associates 1,44,20,261 2,34,60,381
Legal & Professional charges 23,71,867 98,45,235
Auditors Remuneration
- as auditor 13,00,000 29,00,000
- for Certification 2,80,000 4,00,000
- for reimbursement of expenses 11,000 1,04,750
Provision for other doubtful advances 35,62,099 -
Chaiman's Office Fee 40,55,039 -
Directors sitting fees - 70,000
Bank charges* 8,75,199 -
Miscellaneous expenses 20.79.679 21.99.133
Total —l432TTS, e 13480513

*includes Rs.479,356 charged by banks with respect to certain bank accounts not pertaining to the Company.
*The Company is in the process of resolving this matter with banks.

25 LOAN LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

Contingent provision on standard assets (3,03,330) (7,97,464)
Provision for doubtful advances (25,77,610) 2,28,76,710

Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) 12.36.24.139 4574325
Total 20743190 26653571
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26 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following is a computation of eamings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the
computation of basic and diluted eamings per equity share.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L9 L 4
Basic EPS
Net profit / (loss) for the year -16,14,01,338 -13,73,168
Weighted average number of equity shares — for Basic EPS 3,38,51,319 3,23,56,822
Par value per share 10 10
Eamings per share — Basic 4.77 0.04
Diluted EPS
Net Profit / (loss) considered for basic EPS calculation -16,14,01,338 -13,73,159
Weighted average number of equity shares - for Basic EPS 3,38,51,319 3,23,56,822
Add: Weighted number of equity shares under options 8,399 1,098,286
Add: Weighted number of equity shares under Compulsorily 44.31,119 44,31,119
Convertible Preference Shares
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares 3,82,90,837 3,68,97,227
Nominal vaiue per equity share 10 10
Earning per equity share - Diluted* 4.77 0.04

Since the impact of conversion of potential equity shares is antidilutive in nature, the same has not been
considered in the calculation of diluted EPS.




Swamna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financis! statements
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" Year ended Year ended
Patnticulars March 31, 2018 Magsh ?' 2018
4
(i) Contingent habivies .
(s) Dvidend payabie on compuisorily rtibie prek h 1328 -
(b) income tax dispute 2,60,89.428 .
(1) Comnutments
(a) Other commitments-
Housing loans sanchoned but not disbursed to the borrowers 1.90,98,000 1.77.20.872

28 ThaSupm«neCOunhnmuy.Mwhmmwmdmmmhmdmmmtwmbu
Empioyees Provident and Pension funds mm.mmmaum‘mmmummmmn
appmconumu.am.mmmwmwmdwmmnmmumm
on representations made by an industry Jaton in this rd

band

n  Defined benefit plans

The Company offers the empioyse benefit sch of Gratuty 10 its empioyees. Benefits paysbie 1o eligible smpioyeos of the company with respect
to gratuily. a defined benefit pian 18 sccounied for on the basis of an actuerial valuation as at the balance shaet date. Gratiily expense has been
included under Personnel expenses

The followng tabie sets out the funded status of defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements

As ot As at
Particulars —Mach31.2019  MarchdL 2018
4 L4

Components of empioyer expense
Current service cost 3.83.833 2,68,027
Interest cost 85,302 1,08,788
Expected retum on pian sssets (2,00.178) {1.18.472)
Actuanal losses/(gains) 255,588 (.98,080)
Total expense recognized in the Statement of Profit snd Loss 5,14,835 8.30.717
Net asset / (lability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present vaiue of defined benefit abligation 16,00,549 923819
Fau value of plan assets 28.44.041 26,5168
Net asset / (Hability) recognized in the Balance Sheet ) 12,43,492 17,271,748
Change in defined benefRt obligationa (DBO) during the yeer
Present vaiue of the DBO at beginiung of the year 9,23.619 14,52,808
Current service cost 393833 288,027
Interest cost 65,392 1,08.788
Actuanal losses/(gsins) 217,708 (9,04,082)
Present value of DBO st the end of the yeer 16,00.54¢ 9,23.619
Change in fair value of sssets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the yser 26.51,385 15.42.675
Actusl compeny contnibutions 30.381 9.98,250
Actuacial gan / (loss) 162,205 110,440
Benedfits pad -
Pian assets at the end of the year 20,44,041 26,51,385
Actual return / (loss) on pian sssets 1,602,205 1,10,440

Major categories of pian sssets (as percentage of totai plan assets)
Funds Managed by Insurer 100% 100%

%.
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Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

6.65% 7.08%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality tables IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)
Attrition
Ages:
Upto 30 years 30.07% 30.07%
From 31 to 44 years 30.07% 30.07%
Above 44 years 30.07% 30.07%
Estimate of amount of contribution in the i diate next year 3,87,501 2,45,093

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Govemment bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the

Experience gain/ Experience gain/

Experience adjustments Pu::a\:;lut ::' v:::o : (loss) adjustments  (loss) adjustments
n ' on plan liabilities on plan assets
¢ LA € €

2014-15 2,88,158 9,23.618 (33,827) -
2015-16 751,375 26,51,365 (5,719) (1.101)
2016-17 14,52,896 15,42,6875 77,444 (1,22,795)
2017-18 9,23,619 26,561,365 (8,98,060) (6,032)
2018-19 16,00,549 28,44,041 2,55.588 (37.883)
Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e financing which has similar risks and profits for the purpose of AS-17 on Segment Reporting.
The Company operates in single geographical segment i.e domestic.

Operating Leases
The Company has entered into operating lease arangements for office premises. The leases with respect {0 head office are non-cancellable and is for

a period of three years. Expected future minimum cc ts for non able are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L1 [4
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer to Note 24] 79,70,271 68,90,688
Details of liable I are as foll
Future minimum lease payments:
- not later than one year 6,04,228 14,50,148
- later than one year and not later than five years - 6,04,228




32, Related party transactions
The names of related parties of the Company as required to be disclosed under Accounting Standard 18 is as follows:

(a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar - Director
Mr. Raj Kumar Singh - Director
Mr. Amit Ranjan Biswal - Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sameer Siddiqui - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Anand Naik - Chief Executive Officer (upto October 31,
2017)

Enterprises over which Key Managerial personnel or ther Intedcap Advisory Services Private Limited
relatives exercise significant influence

(b) Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2019:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A1 4
1) Transactions during the year
A)  Professional fees - Mr. A Ramesh Kumar 40,55,039
B) Rentexpense - Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar 1.97.063
C) Professional fees - intelicap Advisory Services Private Limited - 8,256,511
D) Remuneration paid*
Key Managerial Personnel #
Mr. A, Ramesh Kumar 2,50,000 60,00,000
Mr. Anand Naik - 17,89,549
Mr. Raj Kumar Singh - 13,41,668
Mr. Amit Ranjan Biswal 5§7,70,992 9.09,248
Mr. Sameer Siddiqui 32,898,474 4,47.349
* Does not includes reimbursement expenses
11) Outstanding balance
A) Professional fees - Mr. A Ramesh Kumar 40,55,039

33. Disclosures on Employee share based payments

On March 17, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors approved an Employee Stock Option Pian whereby common stock are reserved for issuance to
eligible employees of the Company. Under the plan, options are to be granted to the employees as and when advised by the Compensation
Committee/Board constituted for the purpose. The options are to be convertad into one share at a predetermined price to be exercised in accordance
with the plan. The options granted will vest in a graded manner and are to be exercised within a period of 3 years from the date of vesting.

Vesting Condition

1. There shall be minimum period of 1 year between Grant of Options and its first vesting date;

2. Vesting of options is subject to the loyalty and performance of the Empioyee in the folowing manner;

3. Under the Scheme, the options granted will vest with the Employees over a pedod of 3 years from the date of Grant;

For the loyalty part of the option, vesting will happen as follow:

Time Period Options Vested
1st Year from the date of Grant |13% of the Grant
2nd Year from the date of Grant |13% of the Grant

3rd Year from the date of Grant [14% of the Grant




34,

3s.

36.

37.

Other information with respect to the plan is as follows:

Particulars )
Exercise period 48 months from date. of

vesting

Employee to be in

Vesting conditions service at the time of

vesting
Weighted average remaining Vest il: 1 year,|
contractual life (years) Vest lli: 2 years
Weighted average exercise price 17.69
per option (Rs.) )
Weighted average fair vaiue of 17.31
each option (Rs.) )
R iliation of opti
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Optipng outstanding at the 1,50.000 1.11,000
beginning of the year
Granted during the year - 1,50,000
Forfeited during the year - 81,500
Exercised during the year - -19,500
Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the 1.50.000 1.50.000
year
Exercisabie at the end of the 19,500 _
year
Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis & Gross of TDS)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L4 ¢

Travelling expenses - 14,75,331
Advertisement expenses - 441,614
Disciosure regarding penalty or adverse comments as per Housing Fi Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended.

NHB has not imposed any penalty for the year ended 31st March, 2019. Further there are no adverse comments in writing from NHB.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position other than those disciosed under note 27 for contingent
Kabiiities.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.




Bwarna Pragati Hausing Micrefinence Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

38 Additional disci presci by NHB

38.1 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

- Amounia i1 Rugees
[

oA Cyrreny Yu“;“ Previoys Y%{m
4) CRAR - Trer | capital (%) 62.90% 69.22%
) CRAR - Tier If Capral (%) 0.66% 0.60%

) AmOunt of subordinetad debd raised as Tier-H caital - .

38.2 Disclosyre regarding Reserve fund under Section 20C of NHB Act, 1987 as per NHB Circuler dated April 7, 2014,

Provious Year ]

RN
LLXLLTIA
38.3 investments
Amounis jn Rupoes
Particulars urrent Year Previoys Year ]
3.5.1. Value of Investments Suttent Yo . Yoo
1) Gross Value of invesiments
(8) In india 1.05.05.650 8.33.51.083
(8) Outside Inda - -
n) Provision for Depreciaton
(8} in india - -
(8) Outside incdia - -
1) Net Value of investments
iaiininda 1.05.05.650 83351083
(81 Qutside inais - -
3.5.2. M of provisions held d iation on i
1) Opening balance

i) Aad Provisions made dunng the year
#) Less Wiite-off/ wive-back of excess provisions dunng the year
1v) Ciosing balance

PR

38.4 Derivatives

The Company has not entered into denvative / forward rate agreements / nterest rate swaps/ exchange Taded interest rate denvates dusing the current year of previous yesr.

38.5 Securitisation
The Company hes not enerad into sny securitization rensaciion during the cuTent year of previous year.

38.8 Details of Financial Assets sold to IR ion Company for Asset R i
The Comoany has not enered into any secunization fransachon during the Cument year or previous yesr
38.7 Detaiis of Assignment transactions

Tne Company has not entered N0 BNy SECUNTZBEON TBNSACTON GUNNG 1he CUITBNt Yes! Or Previous year.

38.8 Details of P ing fi ial asvets hased / sold
The Company has not purchesed  sold any non-performing inancisl assets dunng e CurTent or PReVIous Year

38.9 Exposure

38.9.1 Exposures to reat estate sector

Rt

{if) Commercisl Real Estete -
(1) Investments in Morigage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

b indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on Natonal Housing Bank {NHB) and Housing Finance Comparses (HFCs)

Particulars Current Yesr

[a) Crrect exposire

(i) Residential Mortgages —

Hous:ing loans up to Rs 15 lakhs 1.18.84.48.667 1,34.64.38.100
Housing loans more than Rs 15 lakhs - -
Non Housing {oans 18.52.07.912 16.13.72.985

38.9.2 Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any exposure 1o capital markets

38.98.3 Details of fi ing of parent
There are no such instances

38.9.4 Details of Singie Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group B Limit (GBL) d by the HFC
Ouring the year e Company has not exceeded SGL & GBL kmits s prescnbed under the NHB Directions.

38.8.5 Unsecured Advances
Refer Note 13 and Note 17

M..




3. 16 Mecellaneous

38.10.4 A binined from other sector
Compeny kistthcasion no. (CIN} UGS027TNZ008PTC 101083

».102 m«n—hwumm*m
Ousng the your andng Murch 31, 2018, 10 penaiies have baen leved by any reguisior on the Compery.
mmmmmmummum

38.10.3 2.3 Relsted Pasty Transasiions
Refer noie 12 for rersections «fi retaiast party lunsackons

0.4 wmn“*wuwdwuﬂn
Long e Renk tycililies Current yoar<CARE 888 -; Oullook-"Negalive® { Provisus yoor CARE: 888 -. Outlook-"Stable” ) .

35.10.5 R of (Ne! - Refor Mot 24

38.10.6 Drawdows from reserves
lhmﬂummmmm_«vn'muﬂ..

38.10.7 lmCawy'_mW&uwmﬂvdwlmmmNpu

» - - Y 3
Y 3 L Y
— 0 7 3080310 TRTX ) ETXEGT Y
2 4305750 KT ¥CX) 087,74
38.13 C ion of Public & and NPAS
38.12.1 C ion of Public (flor Public Deposit taking/holting MFCs)

The Company "as (0L SCCOBINE 87 PUbEC depOsits (g the CUTEE O PAIVIGUS YOOr.

3832 of Leons &
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38.13.3 G

ofall E g off- sheet exp )
Particulars
Total re to twenty i bomowers /Customers
Percentage of Loans & Advances 1o twenty lamgesi bomowers to Total Adva, of the N

38.13.4 Concentration of NPAs

lToul ngn fo top ten NPA accounts

38.13.5 Sector-wise NPAs (As certified by the managemant and relied upon by auditors)

Sr No. Sector

Amoynts in Rugees
Percentage of NPAs to

Total Advances in that
sector

A. Housing Loans:

10.38%

Indwiduals
2 lBuidcrvaE Loans

Ghon apecks

[E Non-Housing Loans:

individuals

3.26%

Buiders/Project Loans

Corporates

Others (specfy)

38.12.6 Movement of NPAs

Amounis in Rupees.
Particulary Current Year Previous Year
i) Net NPAs to Net Advances .75 9.
(il) Movement of NPAs (Gross!
[a) Opening balance 18,84,74.270 | 1
b) Additions during the year 11,13,90.1 13, 5,8
[} Reductions during the yea { I 1
d) Ciosing balsnce 12,91 1 74,270
(ill) Movement of Net NPAs
a)Opening balance 14, 524 87,747
b)Addiions during the year 96,22,38! 10.27.55@
c)Reductions dunng the year {14.33,24 03 {1,13.88,763
[d)Ciosing batance 01.56,741 IRLE KLY
(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a)Opening balance 4.16,16,878 1,87,
|0)Provisions mede dusing the 21786 1 2,78,18.448
c]Writs-off/write-back of excess provisions 434
d)Closing batance X B
33.14 Overseas Assets
Nd. (March 31, 2018: NI
38.15 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
Name of the SPV 3, ored
[ Domestic T Overseas
None { None
38.16 Discl of (As certified by the and ralied upon by auditors)
Current Year Previous Year |
2 N
F -
39. A fraud of Rs. 2,23,830 i g cash emb has been by an empioyse of the C which has been refemed 1o statutory authorities for fusther investigation. The
Company has fully provi for the as at March 31, 2018.

%
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-
40. Figures for previous year have been regrouped and/or reclassified wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year dlassifications.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICA! Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005 Swama Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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Place Bangaiore Place: Bangalore '
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Mohammad Sameer Siddiqui Megha Mohunta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Piace Nagpur Membership No. F 10009
Date : September 03, 2019 Piace. Nagpur
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